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From: Tom Flynn tomflynn@sonic.net
Subject: Fwd: Lawson's Landing Question

Date: 26 June 2020 at 11:05
To: Peter Prows pprows@briscoelaw.net

Peter, 

See below. 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Alber, Scott" <SAlber@marincounty.org>
Subject: RE: Lawson's Landing Question
Date: June 26, 2020 at 10:42:16 AM PDT
To: "Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal" <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>, "Nunes, Tom" <TNunes@marincounty.org>, 
"Weber, Jason" <JWeber@marincounty.org>
Cc: "Manna, Jeannine@Coastal" <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>, "Robert W. Hayes" 
<RHayes@RWHAssociates.com>, Tom Flynn <tomflynn@sonic.net>, Justin Lawson-Battenfeld 
<justin.lawsonbattenfeld@gmail.com>

14 CCR § 1273.08
§ 1273.08. Dead-end Roads.
(a) The maximum length of a dead-end road, including all dead-end roads 
accessed from that dead-end road, shall not exceed the following cumulative 
lengths, regardless of the number of parcels served:
parcels zoned for less than one acre - 800 feet
parcels zoned for 1 acre to 4.99 acres - 1,320 feet
parcels zoned for 5 acres to 19.99 acres - 2,640 feet
parcels zoned for 20 acres or larger - 5,280 feet
All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the road surface at the intersection 
that begins the road to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a 
dead-end road crosses areas of differing zoned parcel sizes requiring different
length limits, the shortest allowable length shall apply.
(b) See 14 CCR § 1273.05 for dead-end road turnaround requirements.
Note: Authority cited: Section 4290, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 
4290 and 4291, Public Resources Code.
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__________________________________________________
Stephanie R. Rexing  
District Supervisor
North Central Coast District
California Coastal Commission
(415)-904-5260
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Environmental Action Committee of West Marin
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956

www.eacmarin.org 415.663.9312

November 28, 2017

Dear Jeannine, 

I want to follow up on the November 8 hearing.  There were a couple of statements made by staff 
that were inaccurate and I would like to correct them for the record.

First, I believe that you stated in answer to a question from the Commission that the EIR covered 
the Lawson's Landing Center.  In fact, there is no reference to a Lawson’s Landing Center or any 
of its components in the EIR, as this table from the Final EIR’s Project Description shows.  I 
have also attached the entire Project Description to the email in which I am sending this letter. 

Table 3-1 Proposed Recreation Facilities
Facility Location Time of 

Implementation
Six Concrete Block Restrooms Main Meadow & Sand Point 1-7 years
Water Faucets Main Meadow 1-7 years
Restroom and Shower Facility Main Meadow 1-7 years
Relocation and Expansion of 
Existing Boat House Sand Point 5-10 years
Centralized Boat Storage Sand Point 5-10 years
Sewage Treatment System and Lines, 
and Access Road Sand Point and Dunes 1-5years
Fire Hydrants Main Meadow 1-5 years
Water Storage Tanks (2) Main Meadow 1-5 years
Reopening of Sewage 
Disposal StationsMain Meadow and Sand Point [1 year?]
Entrance Gate House Main Meadow 1-5 years
Site Access Improvements Main Meadow 1-5 years
Lighting South Ranch 1-5 years
Signage Main Meadow and Sand Point
Road “pullouts” Dillon Beach Road
Pedestrian Trail System Main Meadow 1-2 years
Educational Program Main Meadow 1 year

Second, in responding to another question from the Commission, Dan Carl said that Staff was 
unaware of any plan for 470 campsites.  I am also attaching EAC’s Exhibit 1, which we thought 
had been given to Staff, and which consists of communications between the Applicant and Staff 
in which the Applicant states his intention of having 473 campsites in Phase 2 and agreed to 
staff’s suggestion that this Phase 2 be left out of the Amendment.



Environmental Action Committee of West Marin
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956

www.eacmarin.org 415.663.9312

Lastly, I want to let you know that while EAC agrees with Staff about which buildings in Area 6 
were legally developed and which were not, we do not accept that any undeveloped areas 
adjacent to legally developed building are also legally developed.  We will present arguments on 
this point at a later date.

We look forward to a new Amendment for a wastewater system that does not encroach on 
ESHA.

Thank you for your work on this important project. I hope your Christmas and maternity leave 
are peaceful and happy. 

All the best,

Catherine Caufield

















Environmental Action Committee of West Marin 
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956 

www.eacmarin.org  415.663.9312

Stephanie Rexing 
Coastal Commission 
Suite 2000 
SF CA 94105-2219 

September 15, 2018 

Re: Lawson's Landing 3rd Amendment application 

Dear Stephanie,

This letter is to follow up on my 9/27/18 memo to you and Jeannine on unpermitted relocation of 
the fuel bunker.  As my memo makes clear, the fuel bunker was relocated to Area 6 ESHA in 
violation of an explicit prohibition in Special Condition 2 of the July 2011 CDP. Documents 
submitted to you by Lawson's Landing show that this relocation was accomplished after the CDP 
was approved. The relocation to ESHA also occurred without required County, State or Coastal 
Commission permits.   

The fuel bunker must be removed from ESHA and mitigation must be required for the damage 
done in moving it there.

As you know, the Commissioners were very clear that no future application for an amendment to 
the Lawson's Landing CDP should contain proposals to develop ESHA, in particular the 
Commission focused on ESHA in Area 6.  It is inconceivable that the Commission, or the public, 
would accept approval of an unpermitted development in Area 6 ESHA that took place in 
violation of the CDP approved by the Commission.  Removal and mitigation of the fuel bunker’s 
impact should be a key part of any new amendment application.

Thank you for all your work on this important coastal site. 

Regards,

Catherine Caufield 
cc: Jeannine Manna 



Email: 9.21.18 

Dear Jeannine and Stephanie, 

Before we meet at Lawson's Landing this weekend, I wanted to address the 
issue of the Lawson's Landing Center.  There is no indication at present whether 
they still intend to build such a center, or where. The key issue for the 
Environmental Action Committee of West Marin is that Area 6 be protected as 
ESHA, except for those parts of Area 6 that are proved to have been legally 
developed.  The wastewater system has been pulled back so that it is restricted 
to the section of Area 6 that in my letter of Dec. 11, 2017, I identified as Area Z, 
which staff has described as being part of the sand quarry and therefore 
considered legally permitted.

As you have also noted, though, the Quarry Reclamation Plan referenced under 
CDP 90-15 states that roads used during the quarry operation must be reclaimed 
when ranching operations cease and road use is discontinued.  EAC has argued 
that there are now no ranching or quarrying operations in Area 6, and that 
therefore Area Z (as opposed to Sand Haul Road itself) can no longer be 
considered to be a farm road. Rather it must be recognized as ESHA and 
restored.

However, if Area Z is still (somehow) considered a farm road, then it could be 
used to housed the underground septic facilities.  Obviously, it could not be used 
for aboveground facilities since they would hamper its use as a road.  If at some 
future date, Area Z is no longer considered to be a farm road, it wold have to be 
restored, but that would not necessarily conflict with existing underground septic 
facilities. 

Thus, we could understand the logic of placing septic facilities underground in 
Area Z, but certainly not any aboveground development such as a Lawson's 
Landing Center.

We also reiterate our arguments  in the Dec. 11, 2017 that Area Y & X are also 
ESHA and cannot be developed. 

I’m attaching our Dec. 11, 2017 letter, which contains a drawing showing Areas 
X, Y & Z. 

I’m looking forward to seeing you both tomorrow and to meeting Dante. 

Regards,
Catherine  











November 3, 2018

Stephanie Rexing
California Coastal Commission 
45 Fremont Street, Suite 2000 
San Francisco, CA 94105

Re: Lawson's Landing Truck Shed Area 6

Dear Stephanie,

In his letter dated Sept. 20, 2018, Peter Prows claims that a 1972 photograph from the California 
Coastal Records website provides evidence that the truck shed “area” had been graded in 1972.
In fact, the area that he has highlighted in that photo is the location of the current employee rest
area.  If you compare the 1972 and 1979 photos, you can see that the truck shed area is quite a bit 
further back (to the east) and was not developed in 1972.

In addition, as you are aware §27400 of Prop 20 states that “On or after February 1, 1973 any 
person wishing to perform any development within the permit area shall obtain a permit 
authorizing such development from the regional commission.”

In short, the argument that the Truck Shed area was legally developed does not stand up.

Sincerely,
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Future of DB <bonnie@futureofdb.com>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:34 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Pfeifer, Sara@Coastal
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Re: Lawson's Landing, parking proposal
Attachments: gatehouse.jpg

Dear Stephanie, 
 
I do have an additional comment about this. Willy reached out to me and showed me a clearer 
version of the proposed parking area. We still have concerns and I've marked up photograph to 
illustrate.  
 
In the photograph attached, please note the size of a typical vehicle relative to the entrance area. 
These RVs are sometimes pulling additional recreational vehicles (Jeeps, boats, etc) and they queue 
up outside the gate to enter. To mitigate back-ups, a multi-lane system has been proposed that 
utilizes the existing, but not used western gate. RVs, campers, etc need adequate space to maneuver 
in this area.  
 
Thank you. I know everyone is trying to get this project done! 
 
Bonnie Smetts 

On 9/30/19 3:40 PM, Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal wrote: 
Hi Bonnie, 
Thanks for the input. That is a draft proposal that we put together in trying to understand all the
competing needs, wants, and requirements for that area, public access parking being one of
them. Nothing is set in stone as to where any one thing is going to be located, that arrangement was
just one possibility being considering in trying to get to resolution on this complicated project. We really
appreciate your perspective on the Traffic Management issues, and are exploring options with the
Lawsons to assure that traffic does not get backed up.  
 
I will add your comments to the correspondence file. Please also don’t hesitate to reach out if you have
further concerns or want to discuss. Thanks! 
 
~Stephanie 
 
From: Future of DB <bonnie@futureofdb.com>
Sent:Monday, September 30, 2019 1:44 PM
To: Pfeifer, Sara@Coastal <Sara.Pfeifer@coastal.ca.gov>
Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
<Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Lawson's Landing, parking proposal 
  
Dear Sara, 
 
Catherine Caufield just emailed me a copy of the Lawson’s Landing Draft Proposal 



2

Alternative 1 that details the move of five free parking spaces from the original position 
to outside the gatehouse. I am usually very professional and measured in my 
communications with the Coastal Commission, but I've gotta say here...are you kidding? 
 
The proposed area is and has been used as a waiting area where visitors briefly park 
and walk to the gatehouse to check in. This area is key to the improvements that have 
been made on traffic flow. By having this area available, it keeps the single lane 
entering the campground flowing for visitors already checked in. While this space helps 
mitigate the back-ups, there are still times when traffic makes it impossible for residents 
to leave their driveways. This is the case even with the improvements with the 
reservation system. 
 
An important aspect of mitigating the traffic issues is having all parking located within 
the gate inside the campground. If parking needs to be moved to a nearby roadside 
location, why not at the base of Sand Haul Road? 
 
If this area outside the gate is used for day parking, it would reverse the success of the 
Traffic Management Plan. 
 
As always, thank you for you work.  
 
Bonnie Smetts 
 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach 
bonnie@futureofdb.com 
 
 





1

Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 9:31 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Lawson's Landing Entry Gate Improvement

Hi Stephanie and Jeannine,
After all of these years of talks and drawings and plans of expensive upgrades to the entry gate I am still left

wondering, “Why not just open the other gate?”
The logistics are incredibly simple. Open it. Try it. If it doesn’t work, Close it.
Cost analysis:
If the lock works: $0
If the lock is stuck: 30” bolt cutters ($32.27) + replacement lock ($6.55) = $38.82 + free shipping from Amazon.

For less than $50, traffic capacity at the gate could be doubled. Worst case scenario (total failure, somehow makes
things worse): Close it again.

Project Plans:
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Thank you for your continuing work on what seems to be a never ending project.
Scott
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Bonnie Smetts <futureofdb@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 4, 2020 2:12 PM
To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: Thank You. LL Site Visit

Dear Jeannine, 
 
Thank you for including us in the Lawson's Landing site visit yesterday. We wanted to let you know that we 
agree that the proposed placement of the five free parking places is the viable solution. Lawson's Landing is 
actively and successfully managing their check-ins and congestion at the gate and we are satisfied that there will 
not be additional problems created by the parking places. According to Justin Lawson, having designated hours 
for the spots will help, especially on the difficult early morning low tides days. We believe it’s important that 
the parking spots be far enough away from the West side gate so that it can still be used in the future to improve 
traffic flow. From our understanding there is no reason that it can’t be used.  
 
Your input on the TMP and LL's efforts have really made a difference in traffic flow. Traffic flow is still 
sometimes an issue but it’s very acceptable. We just hope that the Dillon Beach Resort will develop a traffic 
plan as well. 
 
Thanks again for your work. 
 
Bonnie Smetts  
  
 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach 
P.O. Box 26 
Dillon Beach, CA 94929 
futureofdb@yahoo.com 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 23, 2020 10:58 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Re: Lawson's Landing

Yes, staff report, or anything they have submitted, especially pertaining to traffic The early morning (5am ’til after 7am)
traffic jams are getting a bit too common. This week was Saturday through Wednesday, with only minor back up today.
I’m hoping there will be some kind of enhanced management as part of this amendment.
During the last walk through there was talk about the free parking spaces opening at 8am, as opposed to sunrise. It
would be worth trying the same thing for paid day use.
The greatest traffic improvement, from a neighbor standpoint, was when vehicles were no longer allowed to arrive and
depart at all hours of the night.
When the Landing first re opened in late June the gate opened at 8am instead of 6 for about a week. There was still
back up, but listening to car doors slamming and electric boat pumps was more entertaining and less annoying 7 9am
than it is now 5 7am. The same goes for seeing people pee and flick their cigarettes on the ground.
It seems counter intuitive, but opening the gate later may actually help things. Quiet mornings would benefit visitors
staying in the campground as well, especially those along the road.
I’ll work on a “real” letter for the hearing, but please consider the concept in the meantime.
Thanks for all of your work on this project. Does it hold the record for longest running?
Scott

> On Jul 22, 2020, at 8:22 AM, Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov> wrote:
>
> Hi Scott,
> By "stuff" do you mean the staff report? If so, that is not going to be ready for posting until this Friday.
>
> Let me know if you have further questions. Thanks!
>
> Original Message
> From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
> Sent: Tuesday, July 21, 2020 8:46 PM
> To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>;
> Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
> Subject: Lawson's Landing
>
> Hi Stephanie and Jeanine,
> Would it be possible to send me the “stuff” for the Landing?
> Thank you,
> Scott M.
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Tom Flynn <tomflynn@sonic.net>
Sent: Wednesday, July 22, 2020 10:51 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Letter from neighbor on Cliff St. 
Attachments: Bill Bettinelli Emergency Lane 7.14.20.pdf

Hi Stephanie and Jeannine,

The letter attached is from a retired judge, mediator, arbitrator, and environmentalist who with his wife has a home on Cliff
Street north of the entrance gate at Lawsons Landing. The Marin County Fire Marshall has indicated that Cliff St. needs to be
fully accessible by a second means of access when traffic congestion occurs at the choke point between the red legged frog
pond fence and the higher elevation on the east side of the main entrance road. This congestion could occur in the event of
emergencies such as an earthquake, fire, tsunami or some violent occurrence where access on Dillon Beach Rd. would be cut
off.

In addition to the risks of matts failing and sliding out as described in the email from Lawson’s architect Bob Hayes yesterday,
we hope you are also aware that securely and properly placing those matts will take time. There can often be a scarcity of
time in the event of a sudden emergency. For these reasons, we do not expect that the matts you suggest will meet the Fire
Marshall’s requirement for all weather 30 ton capacity. As you probably recall, the Fire Marshall indicated that normally
he prefers a standard road for emergency lanes, but in this case he would be willing to compromise with a georgrid or turf
block. This geogrid or turf block would be planted with native vegetation and would function much the same as the habitat
immediately adjacent to it.

I would also appreciate speaking with you further about the Coastal Commission removing buildings from Lawsons
Amendment as a way to remedy the need for an Emergency Lane.

Thanks!
Tom








